
MASSACHUSETTS RARE DISEASE ADVISORY COUNCIL (RDAC) 
Healthcare Transitions Subcommittee Meeting Agenda
Thursday, September 25, 2025
MEETING TIME 4:00 pm – 5:00 pm  

Meeting Minutes 
Approved October 23, 2025

Subcommittee Chair: Andrew Dwyer, welcomed all to the first meeting of the Healthcare Transitions Subcommittee. 
He thanked everyone for their interest and commitment to the topic. He thanked everyone for their patience in trying to find a mutual time to meeting and explained that there were currently three meetings on the schedule but we would talk about what the meeting would look like after that. He explained that we have five members of the RDAC on the subcommittee and several subject matter experts. He thanked the subject matter experts for their time and knowledge to assist the RDAC in developing recommendations. 

A Dwyer then stated that he would have a roll call to establish a quorum and call the meeting to order. He asked all to state present when their names were called. 

	Andrew A. Dwyer, PhD, FNP-BC (chair)
	Present

	Lisa Jenike, DNP, RN
	Present 

	Stacey C Cook, MD, PhD
	Present

	Olaide Adekanbi
	Present

	Dylan Tierney, MD, MPH
	Present



Subject Matter Experts

	Elaine Gabovitch
	Not Present

	Dr. Ahmet Uluer
	Present 

	Susan Shanske
	Present

	Elizabeth Bostic
	Present

	Nathan Grant
	Present

	Peggy McManus
	Not Present

	Dr. Ryan Thompson
	Not Present



A Dwyer called the meeting to order at 4:08
He then asked if all could introduce themselves to the group. 
All present introduced themselves to the committee. 

A Dwyer summarized the work of the council to date on rare disease healthcare transitions from pediatric to adult care. He explained that the council realized that it would take more research to come up with realistic and achievable recommendations related to this topic. Therefore, the formation of this subcommittee. 
D Tierney shared that the goal of the subcommittee was to make recommendations for the annual report. He shared that the annual report is due every year on December 31st and that it goes to the governor, the legislature and the Department of Public health. The annual report is where we share the work of the council and specifically the recommendations to improve the lives of those impacted by a rare disease in Massachusetts. 
A Dwyer asked all to share their thoughts on the topic. 

A Uluer shared that he felt that a major issue is related to policy and contracting issues. For example, the pediatric contracts allow for more time with patients that the adult contracts. The pay for seeing a pediatric patient is more that seeing an adult patient. He went on to say that, because of this, adult care institutions are often less likely to take on a complex patient. He also noted that in pediatric institutions, the care is often conducted in teams, which is so effective for complex patients. He also noted that pediatric institutions usually have social workers and care coordinators as part of this team, further allowing better continuity of care. He ended by saying that he felt this was a significant barrier to adult care institutions talking on complex pediatric patients. He noted that care coordination programs exist for pediatrics and geriatrics but is severely lacking in adult care. 

S Shanske stated that she has had significant challenges transitioning pediatric patients to adult care services. She added that it seemed like they were taking anyone, not even patients that were complex. 

S Cook asked if there was a way to require adult care providers to take on complex patients. Is there a way to require this? 

A Uluer stated that he felt it may be more effective to have incentives for taking on a complex patients vs requiring them to take on a patient that requires complex care. 

S Shanske stated that she knew of systems and financial models that have been proven to work

A Uluer suggested that one solution may be to require that contracts in adult care are the same as those for pediatric care. 

O Adekanbi asked if there were any models that could allow complex pediatric patients to stay in pediatric care.

A Uluer stated that although some pediatric institutions will keep patients longer, it was not always in the best interest of the patient. He stated that pediatricians education and experience is for pediatric patients, not adult patients. Many times, it’s very important to get an adult providers perspective. 

N Grant stated that specialty care was also a problem. He added that every specialty provider seems to have different age cut offs for when they transition their patients to adult care. This can be very complex for the rare disease patient and family. He also didn’t want to lose sight of supporting families as we discuss this topic.

S Cook asked if there was a way to make a recommendation that made sure that no one loses care. If a patient is aging out of care and no adult provider will take them, what happens? Maybe there would be a way to explain how complex a patient really is..

A Dwyer stated that the council had talked about creating a patient bill of rights related to transitional care from pediatrics to adult care and asked if that was something we wanted to consider. 

S Shanske stated that it seemed that we needed to think about recommendations for both sides of the transition. Maybe recommendations for pediatrics and a different set of recommendations for adult care. 

D Tierney stated that there may not be a silver bullet but we can look at a range of recommendations. We could look at it as a staged approach or just make recommendations that will bring us closer to the ideal. He added that we should look for champions in the legislature to if anyone may be interested in this topics. Depending on our recommendations, it could have a very expensive price tag. 

S Shanske stated that she would be interested in working on a study to look at costs. We could also look at the cost for not making any changes.. 

D Tierney stated that the council could definitely recommend a study if that was a way to get the data that was needed to finalize a recommendation. 

S Shanske added that there has been work looking at adolescents vs young adults. We could look into that too. 

O Adekanbi asked if there was a standard for what a successful transition looks like? She asked if there was an ideal transition model in practice that we could look at. 

S Shanske stated that there were ideal models out there. 

A Uluer added that some countries have a firm age when a child needs to transfer to adult care however in the US there is no definitive age which further complicates things. He added that we should look at how to successful move a patient from pediatrics to adult care no matter what the age. 

S Shanske asked how we start. There are lots of ideas and it seems unclear where to start. She added that some of the things we talk about may be feasible and some may not be. How do we look at the recommendations that will have the highest impact. 

S Cook added that we could look at this through a quality improvement rubric. We could look at the ages and then the recommendations that will have the biggest impact. 

A Dwyer stated that we could develop buckets for the recommendations and add components with each of the recommendations, identifying which ones will have the greatest impact. 

S Shanske added that we needed to include a comprehensive nature to our work. For example in neurodegenerative disorders, we look at workforce development, reimbursement for navigators, education, etc. 

D Tierney added that solving this problem will be challenging but maybe if we look at recommendations for the complex patient it may help all patients in the system. 

S Cook suggested looking at utilization data. This may help us learn what is working and what is not. 

S Shanske agreed that we should look at what is working. She knows of some patients that have successful transitioned from pediatric care to adult care and they are doing well. 

O Adekanbi asked if there may be a way to find rare disease patients that have transitioned successful and doing well. They may be able to share why it went well. 

A Dwyer thanked everyone for the robust discussion. He summarized by stating that we may be able to recommend a study and we may want to look at our challenge as a bucket approach.  He let all know that it was almost 5:00 pm. He reminded all that the next meeting would be on Thursday, October 23rd from 4-5 pm. 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:58 pm 


